
           
 

AGENDA
ESCAMBIA COUNTY PLANNING BOARD

October 3, 2017–8:35 a.m.
Escambia County Central Office Complex

3363 West Park Place, Room 104
             
1. Call to Order.  
 

2. Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag.  
 

3. Proof of Publication and Waive the Reading of the Legal Advertisement.   
 

A.   A. RECOMMENDATION: That the Planning Board review and approve the
Meeting Resume' Minutes of the September 5, 2017 Planning Board Meeting.

B. Planning Board Monthly Action Follow-up Report for September 2017.

C. Planning Board 6-Month Outlook for October 2017.
 

5. Acceptance of Planning Board Meeting Packet.  
 

6. Public Hearings.  
 

A.   A Public Hearing Concerning the Review of an Ordinance Amending LDC
Chapters 3 and 4 Regarding Clustering Dwelling Units

That the Board review and recommend to the Board of County
Commissioners (BCC) for adoption an Ordinance amending the Land
Development Code (LDC), Chapters 3 and 4, to establish conditions for the
clustering of dwelling units when avoiding and preserving protected
resources.

 

7. Action/Discussion/Info Items.  
 

A.   Subdivision Lot Widths for Cul De Sacs Discussion.
 

B.   Storage Containers Discussion.
 



8. Public Forum.  
 

9. Director's Review.  
 

10. County Attorney's Report.  
 

11. Scheduling of Future Meetings.  
 

The next Regular Planning Board meeting is scheduled for Tuesday,
November 7, 2017 at 8:30 a.m., in the Escambia County Central Office
Complex, Room 104, First Floor, 3363 West Park Place, Pensacola, Florida.

 

 

12. Announcements/Communications.  
 

13. Adjournment.  
 



   
Planning Board-Regular   A.           
Meeting Date: 10/03/2017  

Agenda Item:
A. RECOMMENDATION: That the Planning Board review and approve the
Meeting Resume' Minutes of the September 5, 2017 Planning Board Meeting.

B. Planning Board Monthly Action Follow-up Report for September 2017.

C. Planning Board 6-Month Outlook for October 2017.

Attachments
Draft September 5, 2017 Planning Board Rezoning Meeting Minutes
Draft September 5, 2017 Planning Board Regular Meeting Minutes
Monthly Action Follow-Up
Six Month Outlook



D R A F T
RESUMÉ OF THE ESCAMBIA COUNTY PLANNING BOARD QUASI-JUDICIAL

REZONING
 September 5, 2017

CENTRAL OFFICE COMPLEX
3363 WEST PARK PLACE, BOARD CHAMBERS

PENSACOLA, FLORIDA
(8:35 A.M. – 8:44 A.M.)
(9:05 A.M. - 10:59 A.M.)

Present: Reid Rushing   
  Wayne Briske, Chairman   
  Timothy Pyle   
  Patty Hightower   
  Stephen Opalenik   
  Eric Fears   
  William Clay   
Absent: Jay Ingwell
Staff Present: Allyson Cain, Urban Planner, Planning & Zoning

Andrew Holmer, Division Manager, Planning & Zoning
Horace Jones, Director, Development Services
John Fisher, Senior Urban Planner, Planning & Zoning
Juan Lemos, Senior Planner, Planning & Zoning
Kayla Meador, Sr Office Assistant
Meredith Crawford, Assistant County Attorney

 

 

               

1.  Call to Order.
 

2.  Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag was led by Wayne Briske.
 

3.  Proof of Publication and Waive the Reading of the Legal Advertisement. 
 
  Motion by Timothy Pyle, Seconded by Eric Fears 

Motion was made to approve the proof of publication and to waive the
reading of the legal advertisement. 

  Vote: 5 - 0 Approved
 

Other: Jay Ingwell (ABSENT) 
 

4.  Approval of Minutes.
 

A.     RECOMMENDATION: That the Planning Board review and approve the
Meeting Resume' Minutes of the August 1, 2017 Planning Board Meeting.

  

 
  Motion by Timothy Pyle, Seconded by Eric Fears 

Motion was made to approve the minutes from the August 1, 2017
Rezoning Planning Board Meeting. 

  Vote: 5 - 0 Approved
 

Other: Jay Ingwell (ABSENT) 



 

5.  Acceptance of Rezoning Planning Board Meeting Packet.
 
  Motion by Eric Fears, Seconded by Timothy Pyle 

Motion was made to accept the Rezoning Planning Board meeting
packet for September 5, 2017. 

  Vote: 5 - 0 Approved
 

Other: Jay Ingwell (ABSENT) 
 

6.  Quasi-judicial Process Explanation.
 

7.  Public Hearings.
 

A.     Case #: Z-2017-04
Applicant: Wiley C. "Buddy" Page,

Agent for Wayne Cotton,
Copter Complex, LLC.,
Owners

Address: 9700 BLK N Pensacola
Boulevard

Property
Size:

3.47 (+/-) acres

From: HC/LI, Heavy Commercial
and Light Industrial district
(25 du/acre)

To: Com, Commercial district
(25 du/acre)

No planning board member acknowledged visiting the site. 

No planning board member acknowledged any ex parte communication
regarding this item. 

No planning board member abstained from voting on this matter due to any
conflict of interest.

  

 
  Motion by Eric Fears, Seconded by Timothy Pyle 

Motion was made to accept Buddy Page as expert witness. 
  Vote: 5 - 0 Approved
 

Other: Jay Ingwell (ABSENT) 
 
  Motion by Eric Fears, Seconded by Reid Rushing 

Motion was made to accept Applicant Exhibit A and B into evidence. 
  Vote: 5 - 0 Approved
 

Other: Jay Ingwell (ABSENT) 
 
  Motion by Timothy Pyle, Seconded by Reid Rushing 

Motion was made to recommend approval, agreeing with the County on
Criteria A and F, and agreeing with Mr. Page on Criteria B-E. 

  Vote: 5 - 0 Approved
 

Other: Jay Ingwell (ABSENT) 
 

  



B.     Case #: Z-2017-16
Applicant: David Fitzpatrick, Agent

for Stafford Development
Group, Owner

Address: 5940 Saufley Pines Road
Property
Size:

1.43 (+/-) acres

From: HC/LI, Heavy Commercial
and Light Industrial
district (25 du/acre)

To: MDR, Medium Density
Residential district (10
du/acre)

No planning board member acknowledged visiting the site. 

No planning board member acknowledged any ex parte communication
regarding this item. 

No planning board member abstained from voting on this matter due to any
conflict of interest.

  

 
  Motion by Reid Rushing, Seconded by Timothy Pyle 

Motion was made to recommend approval to the BCC. 
  Vote: 5 - 0 Approved
 

Other: Jay Ingwell (ABSENT) 
 

C.     Case #: Z-2017-14
Applicant: Wiley C. "Buddy" Page,

Agent for Crimson Nine
Mile Road Holdings, LLC,
Owner

Address: SW Corner of Nine Mile
Road and I-10

Property
Size:

174 (+/-) acres

From: HC/LI, Heavy Commercial
and Light Industrial district
(25 du/acre)

To: Com, Commercial district
(25 du/acre)

No planning board member acknowledged visiting the site. 

No planning board member acknowledged any ex parte communication
regarding this item. 

No planning board member abstained from voting on this matter due to any
conflict of interest.

  

 
  Motion by Timothy Pyle, Seconded by Eric Fears 

Motion was made to recommend approval to the BCC. 
  Vote: 5 - 0 Approved
 

Other: Jay Ingwell (ABSENT) 
 

D.       



D.     Case #: Z-2017-15
Applicant: Wiley C. "Buddy" Page,

Agent for The Dawson
Company, Owner

Address: 3811 W Nine Mile Road
Property
Size:

52 (+/-) acres

From: HDMU, High Density
Mixed-use district (25
du/acre)

To: Com, Commercial district
(25 du/acre)

No planning board member acknowledged visiting the site. 

No planning board member acknowledged any ex parte communication
regarding this item. 

No planning board member abstained from voting on this matter due to any
conflict of interest.

  

 
  Motion by Eric Fears, Seconded by Timothy Pyle 

Motion was made to recommend approval to the BCC. 
  Vote: 5 - 0 Approved
 

Other: Jay Ingwell (ABSENT) 
 

8.  Adjournment.
 



D R A F T
MINUTES OF THE ESCAMBIA COUNTY PLANNING BOARD

 September 5, 2017

CENTRAL OFFICE COMPLEX
3363 WEST PARK PLACE, BOARD CHAMBERS

PENSACOLA, FLORIDA
(8:44 A.M. – 9:05 A.M.)
(10:59 A.M. - 11:56 A.M.)

Present: Reid Rushing   
  Wayne Briske, Chairman   
  Timothy Pyle   
  Patty Hightower   
  Stephen Opalenik   
  Eric Fears   
  William Clay   
Absent: Jay Ingwell
Staff Present: Allyson Cain, Urban Planner, Planning & Zoning

Andrew Holmer, Division Manager, Planning & Zoning
Griffin Vickery, Urban Planner, Planning & Zoning
Horace Jones, Director, Development Services
John Fisher, Senior Urban Planner, Planning & Zoning
Kayla Meador, Sr Office Assistant
Meredith Crawford, Assistant County Attorney

 

 

               

1.  Call to Order.
 

2.  Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag.
 

3.  Proof of Publication and Waive the Reading of the Legal Advertisement. 
 
  Motion by Timothy Pyle, Seconded by Reid Rushing 

Motion was made to approve the proof of publication and to waive the
reading of the legal advertisement. 

  Vote: 5 - 0 Approved
 

Other: Jay Ingwell (ABSENT) 



 

4.  Review of Monthly Action Follow-Up and Six Month Outlook.
 

A.     RECOMMENDATION: That the Planning Board review the Monthly Action
Follow-up Report for August 2017 and the 6-Month Outlook for September
2017.

  

 

5.  Acceptance of Planning Board Meeting Packet.
 
  Motion by Timothy Pyle, Seconded by Reid Rushing 

Motion was made to accept the September 5, 2017 Planning Board
Meeting packet. 

  Vote: 5 - 0 Approved
 

Other: Jay Ingwell (ABSENT) 
 

6.  Public Hearings.
 

A.     A Public Hearing Concerning the Review of an Ordinance Amending the
Future Land Use Map - SSA-2017-04

That the Board review and recommend to the Board of County
Commissioner (BCC) for adoption, an ordinance amending the Future Land
Use (FLU) Map for a Small Scale Amendment, SSA-2017-04.

  

 
  Motion by Timothy Pyle, Seconded by Reid Rushing 

Motion was made to recommend approval to the BCC. 
  Vote: 5 - 0 Approved
 

Other: Jay Ingwell (ABSENT) 
 

B.     A Public Hearing Concerning the Review of an Ordinance Amending the
2030 Future Land Use Map, SSA-2017-05

That the Board review and recommend to the Board of County
Commissioners (BCC) for adoption, an Ordinance amending the 2030
Future Land use Map.

  

 
  Motion by Timothy Pyle, Seconded by Eric Fears 

Motion was made to recommend approval to the BCC. 
  Vote: 5 - 0 Approved
 

Other: Jay Ingwell (ABSENT) 
 

  



C.     A Public Hearing Concerning the Review of Oakfield Redevelopment Plan
and Recommend Determination of Conformance With the Comprehensive
Plan

That the Planning Board review and recommend to the Board of County
Commissioners (BCC) adoption of the Oakfield Redevelopment Plan and
determine that the plan is in conformance with the local Comprehensive
Plan.

  

 
  Motion by Timothy Pyle, Seconded by Reid Rushing 

Motion was made to recommend approval to the BCC. 
  Vote: 4 - 0 Approved
 

Other: Jay Ingwell (ABSENT) 
  Eric Fears (RECUSE) 

 

D.      A Public Hearing Concerning the Review of an Ordinance Amending
Chapters 2 and 6 Regarding Rezoning Conditions

That the Board review and recommend to the Board of County
Commissioners (BCC) for adoption, an Ordinance amending the Land
Development Code (LDC), Chapters  2 and 6, to revise rezoning conditions
and specifically include consideration of spot zoning.

  

 
  Motion by Timothy Pyle, Seconded by Eric Fears 

Motion was made to recommend approval to the BCC. 
  Vote: 5 - 0 Approved
 

Other: Jay Ingwell (ABSENT) 
 

E.     A Public Hearing Concerning the Review of an Ordinance Amending
Chapter 3 Regarding HC/LI Zoning Uses Within MU-S Future Land Use

That the Board review and recommend to the Board of County
Commissioners (BCC) for adoption, an Ordinance amending the Land
Development Code (LDC) Chapter 3, to identify those uses of the Heavy
Commercial and Light Industrial (HC/LI) zoning district that are allowed
within the Mixed-Use Suburban (MU-S) future land use (FLU) category.

  

 
  Motion by Timothy Pyle, Seconded by Eric Fears 

Motion was made to recommend approval, as amended, to the BCC. 
  Vote: 5 - 0 Approved
 

Other: Jay Ingwell (ABSENT) 



 

7.  Action/Discussion/Info Items.
 

A.     Storage Containers Discussion.

The Chairman moved this item to the next month's agenda.

  

 

8.  Public Forum.
 

9.  Director's Review.
 

10.  County Attorney's Report.
 

11.  Scheduling of Future Meetings.
 

 The next Regular Planning Board meeting is scheduled for Tuesday,
October 3, 2017 at 8:30 a.m., in the Escambia County Central Office
Complex, Room 104, First Floor, 3363 West Park Place, Pensacola, Florida.

 

12.  Announcements/Communications.
 

13.  Adjournment.
 



1 

 

 
Memorandum 
 
TO:  Planning Board 
 
FROM: Kayla Meador, Board Clerk 
 
DATE:  September 22, 2017 
 
RE:  Monthly Action Follow-Up Report for September 2017 
 
The following is a status report of Planning Board (PB) agenda items for the prior month of 
September. Some items include information from previous months in cases where final 
disposition has not yet been determined. Post-monthly actions are included (when known) as of 
report preparation date. Items are listed in chronological order, beginning with the PB initial 
hearing on the topic. 
 
PROJECTS, PLANS, & PROGRAMS 
 
COMMITTEES & WORKING GROUP MEETINGS 
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENTS 
  

• Text Amendments: 

 

• Map Amendments: 

SSA-2017-02 

07-10-17 PB recommended approval 

08-03-17 BCC tabled 

09-07-17 BCC approved 

 

SSA-2017-04 

09-05-17 PB recommended approval 

10-05-17 BCC meeting 

 

SSA-2017-05 

09-05-17 PB recommended approval 

10-05-17 BCC meeting 

 

 

 

 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA 
 

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES DEPARTMENT 

3363 WEST PARK PLACE 

PENSACOLA, FLORIDA 32505 

PHONE: 850-595-3475 

FAX: 850-595-3481 

www.myescambia.com 



2 
 

LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE ORDINANCES 
 
Residential Uses in Zoning Districts 
09-6-16 PB recommended more review by staff 
  On hold – waiting for input from County Attorney’s Office 
 
OSP-2017-01 (formerly 2016-01) 
09-06-16 PB recommended approval 
12-08-16 BCC wanted to reschedule for DEO to be in attendance to meeting 
03-07-17 PB recommended approval 
03-16-17 BCC transmitted to DEO 
09-07-17 BCC approved 
 
Spot Zoning/RZ 
09-05-17 PB recommended approval 
10-05-17 BCC meeting 
 
HC/LI & FLU Inconsistencies 
09-05-17 PB recommended approval 
10-05-17 BCC meeting 
 
REZONING CASES 
 
1. Rezoning Case Z-2017-06 

08-01-17 PB recommended denial 
09-07-17 BCC remanded  

 
2. Rezoning Case Z-2017-11 

08-01-17 PB recommended denial 
09-07-17 BCC denied 

 
3. Rezoning Case Z-2017-12 

08-01-17 PB recommended approval 
09-07-17 BCC approved 

 
4. Rezoning Case Z-2017-13 

08-01-17 PB recommended approval 
09-07-17 BCC approved 

 
5.     Rezoning Case Z-2017-14 

09-05-17 PB recommended approval 
10-05-17 BCC meeting 

 
6. Rezoning Case Z-2017-15 

09-05-17 PB recommended approval 
10-05-17 BCC meeting 

 
7. Rezoning Case Z-2017-04 

09-05-17 PB recommended approval 
10-05-17 BCC meeting 

 



3 
 

8.  Rezoning Case Z-2017-16 
09-05-17 PB recommended approval 
10-05-17 BCC meeting 



PLANNING BOARD MONTHLY SCHEDULE 
SIX MONTH OUTLOOK FOR OCTOBER 2017 

(Revised 9/22/17)  
 

A.H. = Adoption Hearing         T.H. = Transmittal Hearing          P.H. = Public Hearing 
* Indicates topic/date is estimated—subject to staff availability for project completion and/or citizen liaison  

 

Meeting Date 
 

LDC Changes and/or 
Public Hearings 

Comprehensive 
Plan 

Amendments 
Rezoning 

Reports, 
Discussion and/or 

Action Items 

Tuesday, October 1, 2017 • Clustering   • Storage Containers 

• Subdivision Lot 
Widths 

Tuesday, November 7, 2017 • Family Conveyance   • Sunshine Law 
Presentation 

Tuesday, December 5, 2017     

Tuesday, January 2, 2018??     

Tuesday, February 6, 
2018?? 

    

Tuesday, March 6, 2018 ??     

 
Disclaimer: This document is provided for informational purposes only. Schedule is subject to change. Verify all topics on the current 
meeting agenda one week prior to the meeting date. 
 

** Residential Uses Ordinance – waiting on input from the County Attorney’s Office 
** Signs Ordinance – waiting on input from the BCC 
** CPA-2016-01 Extraction and Reclamation – on hold 



   
Planning Board-Regular   6. A.           
Meeting Date: 10/03/2017  
Issue: A Public Hearing Concerning the Review of an Ordinance Amending LDC

Chapters 3 and 4 Regarding Clustering Dwelling Units
From: Horace Jones, Director 
Organization: Development Services

RECOMMENDATION:
A Public Hearing Concerning the Review of an Ordinance Amending LDC Chapters 3
and 4 Regarding Clustering Dwelling Units

That the Board review and recommend to the Board of County Commissioners (BCC) for
adoption an Ordinance amending the Land Development Code (LDC), Chapters 3 and 4,
to establish conditions for the clustering of dwelling units when avoiding and preserving
protected resources.

BACKGROUND:
It is recognized that the presence of wetlands, floodways, and other protected county
resources within development parcels may reduce developable area and the resulting
number of dwelling units possible under the site and building requirements of the
applicable zoning.  Modest flexibility in these requirements can aid in the clustering of
dwelling units to more fully develop available residential density outside of such
resources.  Currently, the LDC identifies several conditions for clustering to avoid
wetlands, but it does not identify those site and building requirements that may be varied
and to what degree.  Amendment of the LDC is necessary to create functional dwelling
unit clustering provisions and include other protected resources.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
No budgetary impact is anticipated by the adoption of this Ordinance.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
The attached Ordinance has been reviewed and approved for legal sufficiency by
Meredith Crawford, Assistant County Attorney. Any recommendations or legal sufficiency
comments made in that review are also attached herein.

PERSONNEL:
No additional personnel are required for implementation of this Ordinance.

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:



POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
Amendment of the LDC requires public hearing review and recommendation by the
Board prior to action by the BCC.  The proposed Ordinance is consistent with the
Board’s goal “to increase citizen involvement in, access to, and approval of, County
government activities.”

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
This Ordinance, amending the LDC, will be filed with the Department of State following
adoption by the BCC.

Implementation of this Ordinance will consist of an amendment to the LDC and
distribution of a copy of the adopted Ordinance to interested citizens and staff.

The proposed Ordinance was prepared by the Development Services Department, in
cooperation with  the County Attorney’s Office and all interested citizens.  The
Development Services Department will ensure proper advertisement.

Attachments
Draft Ordinance



 

PB 10-03-17 Page 1 
Re: Dwelling unit clustering  
Draft PB-3 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2017-_______ 1 

 2 

AN ORDINANCE OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA, AMENDING 3 
PART III OF THE ESCAMBIA COUNTY CODE OF ORDINANCES, THE 4 
LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA, AS 5 
AMENDED; AMENDING CHAPTER 3, ZONING REGULATIONS, 6 
ARTICLE 1, GENERAL PROVISIONS, TO ALLOW MODIFICATION OF 7 
ZONING DISTRICT SITE AND BUILDING REQUIREMENTS FOR THE 8 
CLUSTERING OF DWELLING UNITS, TO ELIMINATE EXISTING 9 
RESIDENTIAL DENSITY BONUSES, AND TO ESTABLISH DWELLING 10 
UNIT CLUSTERING PROVISIONS; AMENDING CHAPTER 4, 11 
LOCATION AND USE REGULATIONS, ARTICLE 5, NATURAL 12 
RESOURCES, AND ARTICLE 6, HISTORICAL AND 13 
ARCHAEOLOGICAL RESOURCES, TO REFERENCE CLUSTERING 14 
PROVISIONS; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR 15 
INCLUSION IN THE CODE; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE 16 
DATE. 17 

  18 

 WHEREAS, the Legislature of the State of Florida has, in Chapter 125, Florida 19 
Statutes, conferred upon local governments the authority to adopt regulations designed 20 
to promote the public health, safety, and general welfare of its citizenry; and 21 

 WHEREAS, the Escambia County Board of County Commissioners has, within 22 
the regulations of the county’s Land Development Code, established zoning districts 23 
which set residential densities appropriate to the purposes of the districts and forms of 24 
dwelling units permitted therein; and, 25 

 WHEREAS, the Board finds that the presence of wetlands, floodways, and other 26 
protected county resources within development parcels may reduce developable area 27 
and the resulting number of dwelling units possible under the site and building 28 
requirements of the applicable zoning; and, 29 

 WHEREAS, the Board finds that, for development parcels containing protected 30 
resources, flexibility in site and building requirements can aid in the clustering of 31 
dwelling units to more fully develop available residential density outside of such 32 
resources; and, 33 

 WHEREAS, the Board finds that, since the April 16, 2015, adoption of the Land 34 
Development Code, amendments to establish comprehensive dwelling unit clustering 35 
provisions are beneficial to the public for both residential development and resource 36 
protection; 37 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF COUNTY 38 
COMMISSIONERS OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA: 39 

  40 



 

PB 10-03-17 Page 2 
Re: Dwelling unit clustering  
Draft PB-3 

Section 1.  Part III of the Escambia County Code of Ordinances, the Land Development 1 
Code of Escambia County, Chapter 3, Zoning Regulations, Article 1, General 2 
Provisions, is hereby amended as follows (words underlined are additions and words 3 
stricken are deletions): 4 

Sec. 3-1.5 Site and building requirements. 5 

(a) Generally.  Each zoning district establishes its own site and building requirements 6 
which define physical limits to the development of district parcels.  These 7 
requirements, in combination with other district provisions, the use and location 8 
regulations of Chapter 4, and the general development standards of Chapter 5, 9 
define the limits for all development within the district. 10 

(b) Modifications.  Except as may be authorized in this article for the clustering of 11 
dwelling units, modifications Variances to the strict application of site and building 12 
requirements may only be granted according to the compliance review processes 13 
prescribed in Chapter 2, and only if the variances maintain the stated purposes of 14 
the applicable zoning district and are not otherwise excluded by other provisions of 15 
the LDC. 16 

(c) Street frontage.  For the application of site and building requirements and other 17 
LDC provisions to any lot with no street frontage the Planning Official shall 18 
determine a front lot line in consideration of lot orientation, access, and other 19 
relevant conditions.  The Planning Official shall also determine the appropriate rear 20 
lot line for any lot with multiple street frontages. 21 

(d) Density.  The number of dwelling or lodging units allowed within a parcel is 22 
determined by the product of the total development parcel area and the maximum 23 
density allowed by the applicable zoning district. When the calculated number of 24 
allowable units for a parcel results in a fraction greater than or equal to 0.5 units, 25 
rounding to the next whole number is permitted to allow a maximum of one 26 
additional unit.  Regardless of the maximum density allowed, each existing lot of 27 
record is vested for a single-family dwelling as the principal use. 28 

(e) Lot width and area. All new lots shall provide the minimum width and area required 29 
by the applicable zoning, except that parcels created for public utilities or preserved 30 
for recreation, conservation, or open space need only have width sufficient for 31 
access to that limited use. Any existing lot of record that contains less width or area 32 
than required by the applicable zoning district may be used for any use allowed 33 
within that district if the use complies with all other applicable regulations, including 34 
buffering and use-specific minimum lot area.   35 

(f) Lot coverage.  The maximum amount of impervious and semi-impervious coverage 36 
allowed for any lot is established by the minimum percent pervious lot coverage 37 
required by the applicable zoning district. The amount allowed by zoning remains 38 
subject to other limitations of the LDC and any approved stormwater management 39 
plan for the lot.  40 



 

PB 10-03-17 Page 3 
Re: Dwelling unit clustering  
Draft PB-3 

(g) Setbacks and yards.  The minimum setbacks and yards for structures are those 1 
required by the applicable zoning district or as otherwise may be stipulated in SRIA 2 
lease agreements for lands on Pensacola Beach. 3 

(1) Nonconformance.  For a structure that is nonconforming with regard to any 4 
zoning required setback, a structural alteration, enlargement, or extension to it 5 
that creates no greater encroachment by distance into the substandard setback 6 
is not considered an increase in nonconformance and does not require a 7 
variance.   8 

(2) Accessory structures. Accessory structures shall be limited to side and rear 9 
yards and be at least five feet from any interior side or rear lot line except where 10 
specifically allowed as encroachments.   Accessory dwellings shall be limited to 11 
the setbacks required for the principal dwelling.  12 

(3) Distance between dwellings.  Where the applicable zoning district allows more 13 
than one dwelling on a single lot, the minimum horizontal distance between such 14 
dwellings shall not be less than twice the side yard distance required by the 15 
district, and the minimum distance between any structures shall not be less than 16 
the minimum required by the Florida Building Code. 17 

(4) Encroachments by building features.  Every part of a required yard shall be 18 
open from its lowest point to the sky, unobstructed except for the ordinary 19 
projection of sills, belt courses, cornices, buttresses, awnings, eaves and similar 20 
building features.  No such projection shall extend more than 24 inches into any 21 
yard, except roof overhangs, awnings, outside stairways, and balconies which 22 
may extend up to 48 inches into any yard provided the building setback is 23 
otherwise at least 10 feet   24 

(5) Encroachment of porch or terrace.  An open, unenclosed and uncovered 25 
paved terrace or a covered porch may extend into the required front yard no 26 
more than 10 feet.  27 

(h) Structure heights. The maximum structure heights allowed by the applicable 28 
zoning district are modified by the following: 29 

(1) Agricultural structures.  Structures such as cotton gins, granaries, silos, and 30 
windmills associated with permitted agricultural uses may exceed the district 31 
height limits if not in conflict with any applicable airport or airfield height 32 
restrictions. 33 

(2) Rooftop structures.  The district height limits do not apply to belfries, chimneys, 34 
church spires, cooling towers, elevator bulkheads, flag poles, television reception 35 
antennae, roof-mounted tanks, mechanical equipment rooms, or similar rooftop 36 
structures that comply with all of the following conditions: 37 

a. They do not separately or in combination with other rooftop structures exceed 38 
10 percent of the horizontal roof area. 39 

b. They do not exceed applicable airport or airfield height restrictions. 40 



 

PB 10-03-17 Page 4 
Re: Dwelling unit clustering  
Draft PB-3 

c. They do not exceed otherwise applicable height limitations by more than 15 1 
feet or 10 percent of actual building height, whichever is greater. 2 

Sec. 3-1.7 Density bonuses.  3 

(a) Generally. A system for residential density bonuses is established to provide an 4 
incentive for the private sector to voluntarily achieve some of the policies of the 5 
Comprehensive Plan.  Within system limits, increased densities are allowed for 6 
properties in the LDR, MDR, HDR, HDMU, and Perdido Key zoning districts.  7 
Proposed development that exceeds LDC requirements and standards is eligible for 8 
density bonuses based on the options established in this section. 9 

(b) Point system.  For each point earned in compliance with the options of the density 10 
bonus system, a 0.4 percent increase is authorized in the maximum density 11 
otherwise allowed by the applicable zoning district, up to the maximum density 12 
allowed by the applicable FLU category.  For example, if 12 points are earned for 13 
development with a 10 dwelling units per acre (du/acre) zoning district limit, the 14 
bonus density is 0.004 x 12 x 10 du/acre or 0.48 additional dwelling units per acre.  15 
Density bonus points are earned through one or more of the following options: 16 

(1) Environmentally sensitive lands.  Donation of environmentally sensitive lands 17 
to a public agency approved by the county, or dedication of a conservation 18 
easement in perpetuity which encompasses environmentally sensitive lands, 19 
earns two points per acre donated or reserved. 20 

(2) Public access to waters, beaches, and shores.  Donation of land to a public 21 
agency approved by the county, or dedication and maintenance of a minimum 22 
15-foot wide public access easement, for the provision of public access to public 23 
waterways, beaches, or shores earns four points per accessway.  24 

(3) Water conservation. Appropriate use of low water demand plants and native 25 
vegetation in all landscaped areas earns two points per site or one point per acre 26 
of qualifying land. The use of drip irrigation or other low water use methods of 27 
landscape irrigation earns one point per site, and the use of treated wastewater 28 
or "grey" water for irrigation earns one point per site or one point per acre 29 
irrigated. 30 

(4) Affordable housing. In a development that includes at least 30 dwelling units, 31 
10 percent of the units assured by the approved plan to be affordable housing for 32 
low to moderate income families earns three points, and 20 percent assured 33 
affordable earns six points. If the development contains 50 or more dwelling units 34 
and 20 percent qualify as affordable for low to moderate income, the applicant 35 
may directly obtain a 5 percent increase in density. No more than 20 percent of 36 
the units in a conventional housing development shall be credited for affordable 37 
housing bonus points. 38 

(5) Redevelopment or adaptive reuse. Existing non-residential structures 39 
proposed for reuse as residential earn one point per five dwelling units. For 40 
rehabilitation of existing multi-family residential structures and participation in 41 
state or federal weatherization programs, one point is earned per five dwelling 42 
units. These bonuses only apply to structures for which no notices of violation of 43 
building or life safety codes have been issued, or where all deficiencies identified 44 



 

PB 10-03-17 Page 5 
Re: Dwelling unit clustering  
Draft PB-3 

in an initial notice have been corrected within the time specified in the notice and 1 
no subsequent violation notices issued.  2 

(6) Provision of sidewalks and bikeways.  The provision of sidewalks or the 3 
provision of bicycle paths or lane markings in developments where such facilities 4 
are not otherwise required earns three points.  If the facilities connect to an 5 
existing commercial, office, service, or public recreation area within one-half mile 6 
of the development, four points are earned. 7 

(7) Protection of historic resources.  Donation of land to a public agency 8 
approved by the county for the purpose of preservation of sites or artifacts with 9 
known archaeological or historic value, or the dedication of a conservation 10 
easement in perpetuity for the preservation of such sites or artifacts, earns two 11 
points per acre or site donated.  12 

(8) Provision of underground utilities.  The provision of underground utilities 13 
earns one point for every four dwelling units served.  14 

(9) Clustering outside prime farmland.  Subdivision of parcels containing prime 15 
farmland which plats lots entirely outside of that farmland and designates such 16 
lands for agricultural or open space use earns three points per acre of prime 17 
farmland set aside. 18 

(10) Clustering outside wetlands.  Subdivision of parcels containing jurisdictional 19 
wetlands which plats lots entirely outside of the wetlands and designates such 20 
lands for conservation or open space uses earns three points per acre of 21 
wetlands set aside. 22 

(11) Tree preservation in subdivisions.  In subdivisions where at least 75 percent of 23 
the protected trees within the required yards and any common open space are 24 
preserved, one bonus point is earned for each 10 lots with protected trees on 25 
them. 26 

(12) Retention ponds as amenities.  Wet retention ponds for subdivision stormwater 27 
management which also provide true scenic amenities to the subdivision earn 28 
one point for each four subdivision lots. 29 

Sec. 3-1.7 Clustering dwelling units.   30 

(a) Purpose.  Where the presence of wetlands, floodways, and other protected 31 
resources reduces the developable area of a parcel and thereby physically 32 
constrains the number of dwelling units practical to develop within the parcel, site 33 
and building requirements of the applicable zoning district may be modified as 34 
prescribed in this section.  The modifications are approved through the applicable 35 
site plan or subdivision review process and are intended to provide modest relief for 36 
the clustering of dwelling units outside of protected resources.  Modifications are not 37 
intended to compensate for all parcel development limitations from on-site 38 
resources, nor do they guarantee the same residential density that may be 39 
developable within a parcel of equivalent area having no protected resources. 40 

(b) Eligible areas.  The provisions of this section apply to all areas of the county except 41 
Perdido Key and Pensacola Beach, the Airfield Influence Planning Districts (AIPDs) 42 
as defined in Article 4 of Chapter 4, and any other areas that may be specifically 43 



 

PB 10-03-17 Page 6 
Re: Dwelling unit clustering  
Draft PB-3 

excluded by the LDC.  Additionally, the adopted provisions of the Escambia County 1 
Mid-West Optional Sector Plan prevail for any development subject to that plan.   2 

(c) Eligible development.  The provisions of this section apply to any dwelling units, 3 
attached or detached, within any proposed predominantly residential development 4 
allowed by the applicable zoning and on contiguous lands under unified control as 5 
these terms are defined in Chapter 6. 6 

(d) Eligible resources.  The provisions of this section apply to those resources 7 
identified by the county as protected and imposing sufficient constraints within 8 
proposed development to support dwelling unit clustering.  For these purposes, 9 
sufficient development constraints are presumed to exist when a contiguous area of 10 
one or more eligible resources comprises no less than 10 percent of the gross 11 
development parcel area and the total resource area comprises no less than 15 12 
percent of that area.  The following resources are eligible under the preservation 13 
conditions noted: 14 

(1) Wetlands and habitat.  For wetlands or the habitat of threatened or endangered 15 
species, as defined for the natural resources regulations in Chapter 4, no less 16 
than 90 percent of the resource area shall remain undisturbed and preserved as 17 
more particularly prescribed in the environmental provisions of the DSM.  18 
Additionally, the platting of lots must be entirely outside of the wetlands and 19 
habitat, including any required buffers.   20 

(2) Floodways.  For a floodway, as defined for the floodplain management 21 
regulations in Chapter 4, the platting of lots and all other development must be 22 
entirely outside of the floodway. 23 

(3) Prime farmland.  For prime farmland, as defined in Chapter 6, the platting of lots 24 
and all other development must be entirely outside of the prime farmland.  25 
Additionally, any subdivision shall designate the resource area on the plat for 26 
agricultural or undeveloped open space use. 27 

(4) Historical resources.  For historical or archeological resources, as defined for 28 
those resource regulations in Chapter 4, the platting of lots and all other 29 
development must be entirely outside of the resource areas.  Additionally, the 30 
sites and artifacts of the resources shall be protected by the dedication of a 31 
perpetual conservation easement for their preservation, or by the donation of 32 
land to a public agency approved by the county for the preservation of resources 33 
with known historical or archaeological value.  34 

(e) Eligible modifications.  The provisions of this section apply to modifications of 35 
specific site and building requirements of the applicable zoning district.  They do not 36 
modify any mitigation requirements for impacts to protected resources.  The 37 
maximum number of dwelling units available within a development remains the 38 
product of the gross development parcel area and the maximum density of the 39 
district, but the following requirements may be modified within the stated limits:   40 



 

PB 10-03-17 Page 7 
Re: Dwelling unit clustering  
Draft PB-3 

(1) Lot width.  Except within the LDR zoning district, the minimum lot width may be 1 
reduced by up to 10 percent, but to no less than 20 feet for cul-de-sac lots and 2 
40 feet for all other lots. 3 

(2) Front and rear setbacks.  The minimum front structure setback may be reduced 4 
to 20 feet and the minimum rear setback may be reduced to 15 feet. 5 

(3) Side setbacks.  The minimum side structure setbacks may be reduced by up to 6 
10 percent, but to no less than five feet. 7 

(4) Distance between dwellings.  The minimum distance between dwellings on the 8 
same parcel, prescribed in this article as twice the minimum side structure 9 
setback, may be reduced by up to 10 percent of the unmodified side setback of 10 
the zoning district and subject to any prevailing structure separation requirements 11 
of the Florida Building Code. 12 

 13 

Section 2.  Part III of the Escambia County Code of Ordinances, the Land Development 14 
Code of Escambia County, Chapter 4, Location and Use Regulations, Article 5, Natural 15 
Resources, is hereby amended as follows (words underlined are additions and words 16 
stricken are deletions): 17 

Sec. 4-5.2 General provisions. 18 

(a) Approval required.  All land uses and development activities which impact 19 
environmentally sensitive lands require prior county review and approval for 20 
compliance with the regulations of this article unless the use or activity is specifically 21 
identified in the Land Development Code (LDC) as exempt from these regulations.  22 
The Board of County Commissioners (BCC) has determined the following land and 23 
water resources to be environmentally sensitive lands:  24 

(1) Wetlands as defined by the State of Florida.  25 

(2) Shoreline protection zones as defined in this article. 26 

(3) Aquatic preserves and the Escambia River Wildlife Management Area as defined 27 
or authorized by Florida Statutes. 28 

(4) Outstanding Florida Waters as listed in the rules of Florida Administrative Code 29 
(Ch. 62-302.700). 30 

(5) Habitats of threatened and endangered species as defined by the U.S. Fish and 31 
Wildlife Service (FWS), the Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission 32 
(FWC), or other state or federal agencies. 33 

(6) Essential fish habitat, including seagrasses, defined as those waters and 34 
substrate necessary for fish to spawn, breed, feed, or grow to maturity.  (See 35 
Magnuson-Stevens Act, 16 U.S.C. 1802 (101)).   36 

(7) Floodplain areas identified on the Federal Emergency Management Agency’s 37 
Flood Insurance Rate Map as areas of special flood hazard subject to a one 38 
percent or greater annual chance of flooding. 39 



 

PB 10-03-17 Page 8 
Re: Dwelling unit clustering  
Draft PB-3 

(8) Wellhead protection areas as defined in this article, including potable water wells, 1 
cones of influence, and potable water well fields. 2 

(9) Surface waters identified as impaired under Section 303(d) of the Clean Water 3 
Act 4 

(b) Modification of regulations.  Variances to the strict application of the regulations of 5 
this article may only be granted according to the compliance review processes of 6 
Chapter 2, and only if such modifications maintain the stated purposes of this article, 7 
are specifically allowed by its provisions, and comply with all stated conditions. 8 

(c) Environmental trust fund.  The Escambia County Environmental Lands Trust Fund 9 
(ECELTF) is established for use in managing wetlands and other environmentally 10 
sensitive lands in the county.  The county is authorized and directed here to 11 
establish the fund and to receive and disburse all monies according to the following 12 
provisions: 13 

(1) Fund sources.  The ECELTF shall receive monies from the following sources: 14 

a. All revenues collected pursuant to mitigation and enforcement of this article. 15 

b. All monies accepted by Escambia County in the form of grants, allocations, 16 
donations, contributions, or appropriations for the acquisition, restoration, 17 
enhancement, management, mapping, and/or monitoring of environmentally 18 
sensitive lands. 19 

c. All interest generated from the deposit or investment of ECELTF monies. 20 

(2) Fund maintenance and disbursements.  The ECELTF shall be maintained in 21 
trust by the county solely for the purposes prescribed here, in a separate and 22 
segregated fund of the county that shall not be commingled with other county 23 
funds until disbursed, and only disbursed for the following purposes: 24 

a. Acquisition (including by eminent domain), restoration, enhancement, 25 
management, mapping, and/or monitoring of environmentally sensitive lands 26 
and conservation easements within Escambia County.   27 

b. All costs associated with acquisitions, including appraisals, surveys, title 28 
search work, real property taxes, documentary stamps, surtax fees, and other 29 
transaction costs. 30 

c. Costs of administering the activities enumerated in this section. 31 

(d) Resource identification.  Where the potential for on-site wetlands or the habitat of 32 
threatened or endangered species is indicated, a site-specific survey shall be 33 
conducted and shall include the delineation of all such lands on the subject parcel.  34 
The survey shall be evaluated for the protection of significant resources prior to 35 
clearing, grading or other alterations, and the delineations shall be used in the 36 
determination of buildable area on the lot or parcel.  37 

(e) Avoidance, minimization, and mitigation.  If a proposed land use or development 38 
activity includes impacts to protected natural resources, the application for county 39 
compliance review and approval shall include written documentation that adverse 40 



 

PB 10-03-17 Page 9 
Re: Dwelling unit clustering  
Draft PB-3 

impacts to those resources have been avoided to the maximum extent practicable.  1 
For unavoidable adverse impacts, the application shall demonstrate that the impacts 2 
have been minimized to the greatest extent practicable.  Only with such 3 
demonstration will the county review and consider a mitigation plan for those 4 
impacts.   5 

(1) Clustering.  Where lands proposed for predominantly residential development 6 
contain wetlands, or the habitat of threatened or endangered species, or 7 
floodways, development dwelling units may be clustered within non-8 
environmentally sensitive areas as prescribed in Article 1 of Chapter 3 to more 9 
fully develop available density on the remainder of the parcel and avoid 10 
adverse impacts on the resources. to avoid adverse impacts and promote full 11 
utilization of property rights.  This provision overrides any provision in Chapter 12 
3- zoning regulations - that would otherwise prohibit clustering, with the 13 
exclusion of any AIPD areas. 14 

(2) Mitigation.  A land use or development activity shall not cause a net adverse 15 
impact on resource functions that is not offset by mitigation.  Methods to 16 
compensate for adverse direct or indirect impacts are required when uses or 17 
activities degrade estuaries, wetlands, surface waters, submerged aquatic 18 
vegetation, threatened and endangered species habitat and other protected 19 
natural resources.   20 

(3) Mitigation plans.  A mitigation plan shall be submitted to the County and 21 
include provisions for the replacement of the predominant functional values of 22 
the lost resources, specify the criteria by which success will be measured, and 23 
specify any necessary maintenance entity and its responsibilities.  24 

 25 

Section 3.  Part III of the Escambia County Code of Ordinances, the Land Development 26 
Code of Escambia County, Chapter 4, Location and Use Regulations, Article 6, 27 
Historical and Archaeological Resources, is hereby amended as follows (words 28 
underlined are additions and words stricken are deletions):  29 

Sec. 4-6.2 General provisions.  30 

(a) Identification of resources.  The potential for on-site historical and archeological 31 
sites shall be determined through review of the Florida Master Site File, Florida’s 32 
official inventory of historical and cultural resources maintained by the Florida 33 
Department of State, and probability maps found in the technical manual. 34 

(b) Protection required.  To protect historical and archeological sites, land uses and 35 
development activities require prior county review and approval for compliance with 36 
the regulations of this article unless the use or activity is specifically identified in the 37 
LDC as exempt from these regulations.  Additionally, these regulations apply to any 38 
historical or archeological artifact discovered during any phase of construction until 39 
such time as the artifact has been protected or proven insignificant. 40 



 

PB 10-03-17 Page 10 
Re: Dwelling unit clustering  
Draft PB-3 

(c) Cessation of activities.  Any time historical or archeological artifacts or resources 1 
are discovered during the process of construction or development activities, such 2 
activities impacting the artifact or resource shall immediately cease until such time 3 
as a determination of significance has been provided.  4 

(1) Partial cessation.  If the location of the artifact or resource is such that the area 5 
can be protected while construction or development activities continue elsewhere 6 
on the site, such protection shall be allowed.  However, if the location or nature of 7 
the artifact or resource is such that any site disturbing activities would impact the 8 
artifact or resource, then activities on the entire site shall cease. 9 

(2) Extension of approval time.  If the cessation of construction or development 10 
activities goes beyond the time limits established by development orders, 11 
building permits or any other county approvals issued according to the provisions 12 
of the LDC, then the time for completion of such activities shall be extended to 13 
allow for the successful completion of the development or construction. 14 

(d) Determination of significance.   15 

(1) Artifacts.  The determination of whether or not an artifact is of significant 16 
importance and afforded protection by federal or state regulation shall be 17 
concluded no later than ten business days after discovery and notification to the 18 
county.  19 

(2) State approved.  The determination of the significance of any artifact or 20 
historical or archeological evidence found on any construction site or on any site 21 
listed on the Florida Master Site File shall be made by those persons, firms or 22 
corporations approved to make such determination by the Florida Department of 23 
State, Division of Historical Resources. 24 

(e) Available resources.  The county shall use any available resources of the Florida 25 
Department of State, Division of Historical Resources, in the identification of historic 26 
structures within the county.  The county will utilize guidance, direction and technical 27 
assistance received from the agency to insure protection of identified historic 28 
structures, sites and areas.  Additionally, the county will utilize state assistance 29 
together with the assistance of the University of West Florida and others in 30 
identifying newly discovered historic or archeological resources.  The identification 31 
will include an analysis to determine the significance of the resource.  32 

(f) Clustering.  Where lands proposed for predominantly residential development 33 
contain historical or archeological resources, the dwelling units may be clustered as 34 
prescribed in Article 1 of Chapter 3 to more fully develop available density on the 35 
remainder of the parcel and avoid adverse impacts on the resources.Clustering 36 
provisions found in Article 5 may be utilized for this resource. 37 

 38 

  39 



 

PB 10-03-17 Page 11 
Re: Dwelling unit clustering  
Draft PB-3 

Section 4. Severability. 1 

If any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is held to be invalid or 2 
unconstitutional by any Court of competent jurisdiction, then said holding shall in no way 3 
affect the validity of the remaining portions of this Ordinance. 4 

 5 

Section 5. Inclusion in Code.  6 

It is the intention of the Board of County Commissioners that the provisions of this 7 
Ordinance shall be codified as required by F.S. § 125.68 (2016); and that the sections, 8 
subsections and other provisions of this Ordinance may be renumbered or re-lettered 9 
and the word “ordinance” may be changed to “section,” “chapter,” or such other 10 
appropriate word or phrase in order to accomplish such intentions. 11 

 12 
Section 6. Effective Date.  13 

This Ordinance shall become effective upon filing with the Department of State. 14 

 15 

DONE AND ENACTED this_____ day of ______________, 2017. 16 

 17 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 18 

ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA 19 

  20 

By: ______________________________ 21 

           D. B. Underhill, Chairman 22 

 23 

ATTEST:    PAM CHILDERS                                             24 

    Clerk of the Circuit Court 25 

 26 

  By: __________________________    27 

          Deputy Clerk  28 

(SEAL) 29 

 30 

ENACTED: 31 

FILED WITH THE DEPARTMENT OF STATE:    32 

EFFECTIVE DATE:  33 



   
Planning Board-Regular   7. A.           
Meeting Date: 10/03/2017  

Agenda Item:
Subdivision Lot Widths for Cul De Sacs Discussion.

Attachments
Attachment



1

John C. Fisher

From: John C. Fisher
Sent: Wednesday, July 19, 2017 3:04 PM
To: Horace L Jones; Terry D Williams; Andrew D. Holmer
Cc: Griffin L Vickery
Subject: semi-Cul-de-sacs/knobs/bulges in Subdivisions

David Peaden & Tom Hammond,  

Escambia County Planning & Zoning staff is working on a an ongoing subdivision lot width issue when dealing with 
curves in the road. In Land Development Code (LDC) under the Site and Building Requirements the conflict comes when 
we talk about Cul‐de‐sacs. Staff are reviewing things like, semi‐Cul‐de‐sacs/knobs/bulges in the road, as well as curves in 
the road where the engineer is designing with 20’ lot widths which is a Cul‐de‐sac design. 

Please review below some suggestions and thoughts and reply back. We can schedule a meeting to discuss any options 
as needed. 

 One idea would to do a Lot width Average at the Street ROW for when platting a subdivision. 

 Subdivisions are being submitted with knobs or sharp curves in the road and using the Cul‐de‐sac lot 
width of 20 for a design. 

 Currently under the LDC Site & Building Requirements for example in LDR we have.   
 

Lot width. A minimum lot width of 20 feet at the street right-of-way for cul-de-sac lots and 
60 feet at the street right-of-way for all other lots.  
 

 The issue is Cul-de-sacs and staff removed the Front Building Line Lot width back in 
August of 2016. 
 
In removing the front building line lot width was supposed to make it easier for engineers to 
design because they would only have to adhere to the street right-of-way lot width of 40’, 
50’, 60’ etc verse also the front building line. 
 
 Please see attachments of some examples and read below the Cul-de-sac definition as 
well some alternative language.  
 

 Definition in LDC 
 

Cul-de-sac. A local street with one end open to traffic and the other end terminated by a 
vehicular turnaround. For the purposes of determining required minimum lot width, the term 
“cul-de-sac” refers only to the vehicular turnaround at the closed end of the street.  
 
 

When creating a platted subdivision with curves or knobs/ bulges in the road a 20% 
reduction may be applied to the street right-of-way lot width as long as the front setback 
meets the current default street right-of-way.  
 

Would need to define the street knobs/bulges. 

Thanks 

 



2

John C Fisher 
Senior Planner 
Development Services Department 
3363 West Park Place 
Pensacola, FL 32505 
850‐595‐4651 
  
Florida has a very broad public records law.  Under Florida's law, both the contents of emails and email addresses are 
public records.  If you do not want the content of your email or your email address released in response to a public 
records request, do not send electronic mail to this entity. 
 
 
John C Fisher 
Senior Planner 
Development Services Department 
3363 West Park Place 
Pensacola, FL 32505 
850‐595‐4651 
 
Florida has a very broad public records law.  Under Florida's law, both the contents of emails and email addresses are 
public records.  If you do not want the content of your email or your email address released in response to a public 
records request, do not send electronic mail to this entity. 
 



astierwalt
Polygon









Rick Harrison

Rick Harrison is president of Rick Harrison Site Design Studio and Neighborhood Innovations LLC. He is the author of the book
Prefurbia and the developer of the Performance Planning System.

As the economy begins a slow recovery and subdivision development work

again gets under way, it makes sense to reassess the approach to the basic

form of land development design. Developers assume that when they hire a

land surveyor to subdivide their land, the surveyor will produce the most

efficient, attractive and marketable layout. So what is the optimum layout?

As the economy begins a slow recovery and subdivision development work again gets under way, it makes

sense to reassess the approach to the basic form of land development design. Land surveyors are a major

source for the design of land developments-in particular, suburbia. Developers assume that when they hire

a land surveyor to subdivide their land, the surveyor will produce the most efficient, attractive and

marketable layout. So what is the optimum layout?

One of the most popular suburban subdivision design elements is the cul-de-sac. Developers and real

estate agents love cul-de-sacs because they are highly desirable and, thus, easy to sell. Cul-de-sac lots have

a huge rear yard (bringing premium prices) because of the extreme pie shape, and the curving streets

guarantee that no traffic will speeding through. The wide angles between the adjacent home sides allow

some useable side yard space as well as added privacy. Quiet, serene and safe-what’s not to love?

The reality is that existing design guidelines for cul-de-sacs create a substantial amount of waste with

relatively little benefit. In the upper Midwest, for example, design guidelines stipulate that a cul-de-sac

must have a 120-foot-diameter right-of-way with a 100-foot to 110-foot circle of asphalt because fire

departments say they need that much room to turn a fire engine around. As a result, a typical cul-de-sac

consumes 8,500 square feet of paved space. Yet, a bit farther south, those dimensions change to a 100-foot-

diameter right-of-way with a 90-foot-diameter circle for a total of just under 6,000 square feet of space.

Opinion: Rethinking Subdivision Design http://www.pobonline.com/blogs/14-point-of-beginning-blog/post/94291...

1 of 4 6/28/17, 4:16 PM



That’s a substantial difference.

There are other problems, too. An 8,500-square-foot volume of cul-de-sac paving for four lots equates to

2,150 square feet per home, which is 40 percent more paving per house than a home along a typical

straight street. This means the home will cost the city 40 percent more for snow removal, resurfacing, etc.,

forever. Additionally, cul-de-sacs have no connectivity or flow of space. And homes that are placed to offer

premium views to their occupants typically form a visual barrier to others of that view.

A collection of new methods called prefurbia (preferred urbia) throws out convention in favor of a more-

efficient design.

A conventional cul-de-sac design.

When planning subdivisions, everyone generally assumes that the minimum dimensions are the most

efficient. However, the minimum dimensions in a cul-de-sac are typically very inefficient.

By making a typical northern cul-de-sac larger-for example, 160 feet in diameter with a one way narrow

lane (18 feet wide) incorporating an organic island (see picture below right)-the pavement area plummets.

Such a design uses 10 percent less paving and has a central “park” that beautifies the landscape and allows

for drainage.

Placing the homes at a deeper setback from the right-of-way (40 or 50 feet or more instead of the typical

25-foot setback) stretches the length of setback line and makes the lots much less pie-shaped. Most

ordinances allow setbacks to be extended without asking for a planned unit development (PUD) permit

because ordinances specify only minimums, and these dimensions are all larger.

Opinion: Rethinking Subdivision Design http://www.pobonline.com/blogs/14-point-of-beginning-blog/post/94291...

2 of 4 6/28/17, 4:16 PM



A prefurbia cul-de-sac design.

The new cul-de-sac should double the number of premium positioned and shaped lots with much less

paving. Instead of being 40 percent less efficient than a rectangular lot on a straight street, the new cul-de-

sac is approximately 20 percent more efficient. First developed as coving (a method of organized

meandering setbacks) this larger cul-de-sac conforms to conventional design, as well-the development

does not have to be “coved.”

What’s more, the larger cul-de-sac requires no more land area (density per unit) than a traditional cul-de-

sac. While a lot in this larger cul-de-sac is less pie shaped, it still has a significantly larger rear yard.

Additionally, the lots overlooking an 8,800 -square-foot park will be of much higher value than those

overlooking the 8,500-square-feet of asphalt in a traditional cul-de-sac design. The park can be used for

gardens and recreation. Another benefit is that draining into the center eliminates curbing on one side,

which makes the subdivision even more efficient and green. Additionally, since the design doubles the

number of premium cul-de-sac lots using less paving and overall land area, fewer cul-de-sacs-and

therefore fewer intersections-are needed, which increases the efficiency of the overall neighborhood.

This design also ushers in a new era of pedestrian connectivity. Instead of a narrow sidewalk on both sides

of the street, this new form of cul-de-sac features a more environmentally friendly, less expensive 6-foot

walkway on one side of the street that extends through and beyond the cul-de-sac and leads to the park

areas in the middle. The interconnecting walks can be made wide enough at certain locations to provide

emergency access that would rival tight grid patterns.

The deeper setbacks produce longer driveways, but new design and construction methods can get the

pavement volume close to that of a standard driveway and heighten curb appeal.

Since all minimums and setbacks extend beyond the minimum required dimension, there should be no

Opinion: Rethinking Subdivision Design http://www.pobonline.com/blogs/14-point-of-beginning-blog/post/94291...

3 of 4 6/28/17, 4:16 PM



Copyright ©2017. All Rights Reserved BNP Media.

Design, CMS, Hosting & Web Development :: ePublishing

arguments from the municipality. In fact, municipal officials are likely to embrace this type of design. Also,

this design allows developers to become inventive. Neighborhoods developed through this design enhance

the sense of space, reduce impervious surface area, create more-affordable homes and lessen the

environmental impact of land development. Even if you do not subscribe to coving, few can argue the

advantages of creating this new form of cul-de-sac. Understanding this advanced method of subdivision

design can help surveyors leverage more business as the economy regains momentum.

What do you think? Does this new form of cul-de-sac design offer new opportunities for surveyors in

land development work? Please share your comments below.

Prefurbia

Rick Harrison Site Design Studio

Performance Planning System

Rick Harrison is president of Rick Harrison Site Design Studio and Neighborhood Innovations LLC. He is the author of the book
Prefurbia and the developer of the Performance Planning System.

Opinion: Rethinking Subdivision Design http://www.pobonline.com/blogs/14-point-of-beginning-blog/post/94291...

4 of 4 6/28/17, 4:16 PM



   
Planning Board-Regular   7. B.           
Meeting Date: 10/03/2017  

Agenda Item:
Storage Containers Discussion.

Attachments
Attachment 1
Attachment 2



Thursday, June 29, 2017 

 

Storage Containers 

 

Attendance: Terry, Griff, John 

 

Residential use.   

As Accessory 

 Pods are working as temp. 

 Shipping Containers meet standard LDC Accessory rules. 

 Industrial appearance 

 Limit to 1 or a sqft or my zoning.   

 Limit by lot size. 

 Color create a scheme 

 Rust 

 Roof must be a tilt for runoff,,,,find APA article 

 Define shipping containers 

 CRA 

 NO STACKING 

 10 feet in height, 10 feet in width, and 40 feet in length, 400sqft 

 Must be screen 

 6ft privacy min. 

 

 

 

Creating a SFD. 

 Must meet Building code. Define what is a living facility.   

 Tilt of roof? 

 Do we want to control looks. 

 CRA 

 

 

Commercial use. 



 

County of San Diego, Planning & Development Services 
 

REQUIREMENTS FOR PLACING A SEA 
CARGO CONTAINER ON A PRIVATE LOT 
 

ZONING DIVISION 

 

5510 OVERLAND AVE, SUITE 110, SAN DIEGO, CA  92123 ● (858) 565-5981 ● (888) 267-8770 
 

http://www.sdcounty.ca.gov/pds 

PDS-726   (Rev. 01/12/2017)                    PAGE 1 of 3 

Pursuant to Section 6162 of the Zoning Ordinance, a building permit is required to place 
a Sea Cargo Container on a lot and a demolition permit to remove a Sea Cargo Container 
 
A. Requirements: before placing a Sea Cargo Container on a lot, you must fully 

comply with Section 6162 of the County of San Diego Zoning Ordinance: 
 

1. Property owners claiming to be an agricultural operation must provide substantial evidence of 
use, such as aerial photos of the last 30 years, showing the agricultural operation in 
place, or dated photographs, business tax records, business receipts, customer orders, or 
other significant information related to an active agricultural operation.   

 
The burden of proof of use is the responsibility of the property owner, they must show 

evidence that the agricultural operation has been in place for the last 30 years; or was legally 
established with the appropriate permits. 

 
2. On building sites where the primary use is residential a Sea Cargo Container shall 

only be allowed if it is not visible from that portion of any road (whether public, private, 
and/or private road easement) that directly abuts the subject parcel.  If existing 
landscaping is used as screening, it shall be indicated on the building plans and 
photos shall be submitted as evidence (See next page for illustration only).  If fencing 
is used as screening, please see Section 6708 of the Zoning Ordinance for fencing 
regulations. 

 
3. On building sites of less than 2 acres (net) where the primary use is residential only 

one Sea Cargo Container is allowed, not exceeding 320 square feet and the container 
is only permitted for up to 180 consecutive days, starting from the date of permit 
issuance.  A demolition permit is required to confirm removal of the Sea Cargo 
Container. 

 On building sites of more than 2 acres (net) with a legally established primary use, a 
Sea Cargo Container(s) is allowed if it complies with the other requirements of 
Section 6162. 

 
4. Sea Cargo Containers must meet setback requirements for accessory structures.   
 
5. The Sea Cargo Container can only be used for storage. 
 
6. A Sea Cargo Container may be allowed in commercial and industrial zoned areas 

only if there is a legally established primary use on-site and all parking requirements 
are maintained. 

 
7. Sea Cargo Containers are allowed in all zones temporarily to store building materials 

during the construction pursuant to an active building permit.  If the building permit is 
expired, the Sea Cargo Container shall be removed with a demolition permit. 

http://www.sdcounty.ca.gov/pds


 

County of San Diego, PDS, Zoning Division 
   REQUIREMENTS FOR PLACING A SEA CARGO CONTAINER ON A PRIVATE LOT 

Continued 

 

5510 OVERLAND AVE, SUITE 110, SAN DIEGO, CA  92123 ● (858) 565-5981 ● (888) 267-8770 
 

http://www.sdcounty.ca.gov/pds 

PDS-726   (Rev. 01/12/2017)    PAGE 2 of 3 

Possible location of a Sea Cargo Container, because the container is not visible from abutting 
street.  (A street is a County road, State highway, public road, street or alley, or private 
thoroughfare or easement (or proposed private thoroughfare or easement shown on a recorded 
parcel map) not less than 10 feet in width which affords primary access to an abutting lot.) 

 
 
Possible location of a Sea Cargo Container, because the container is screened by an existing 
fence (see Section 6708 of the Zoning Ordinance for fencing regulations). 
A Sea Cargo Container can only be screened by existing landscaping (new landscaping does not 
qualify as screening).  

 
 

SFD
 Fence  

Sea Cargo 
Container 

Fence 

Fence 

SFD 

Sea Cargo 
Container 



 

County of San Diego, PDS, Zoning Division 
   REQUIREMENTS FOR PLACING A SEA CARGO CONTAINER ON A PRIVATE LOT 

Continued 

 

5510 OVERLAND AVE, SUITE 110, SAN DIEGO, CA  92123 ● (858) 565-5981 ● (888) 267-8770 
 

http://www.sdcounty.ca.gov/pds 

PDS-726   (Rev. 01/12/2017)    PAGE 3 of 3 

8. The square footage of the Sea Cargo Container shall be added to the allowable 
combined square footage of all existing and/or proposed accessory structures 
pursuant to 6156.g. 

 

Lot Size (gross) 

Det. Accessory Structures  
in all Res, Ag & S92 Zones 

(formerly 6156.g and 6156.h) 

< 1/2 ac 

1,450 sf  
(only in zones subject to a Residential Use 
Regulation and in the S88 Use Regulations 

where residential uses occur) 

< 1 ac 2,000 sf 

1 ac  - <2 ac 3,000 sf 

2 ac - <4 ac 4,000 sf 

4 ac - <8 ac 5,600 sf 

8 ac - <12 ac 6,400 sf 

12 ac - <16 ac 7,200 sf 

16 ac or more 8,000 sf 

 
9. The exterior of every Sea Cargo Container shall be painted with one of the approved 

colors.  The color shall be indicated on the plot plan.  The following colors are 
approved: 

 
a. Flat, non-reflective dark green to match the surrounding area; 
b. Flat, non-reflective white (this color is typically limited to AG uses); 
c. Flat, non-reflective, tan to match the surrounding area; or,  
d. Other solid neutral color that matches the surrounding natural environment 

(applicant must provide pictures of surrounding area to show compliance) 
 
10. If you have an existing Sea Cargo Container that was legally placed on your parcel 

(with a building permit and before May 18, 2007) you are allowed to continue the use 
of the Sea Cargo Container as a non-conforming use for two more years.  At or before 
May 17, 2009, the Sea Cargo Container shall be removed from the parcel with a 
demolition permit or you have to obtain a new building permit and be fully in 
compliance with Section 6162 of the Zoning Ordinance. 

 

 
 
  



 

As a covered entity under Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act, the City of Long Beach does not discriminate on the basis of disability and, upon 
request, will provide reasonable accommodation to ensure equal access to its programs, services and activities. For efficient handling of information 
internally and on the internet, all documents and handouts, including interpretations and guidelines that have been previously issued, will be converted to 
this new format to allow flexibility and timely distribution of information to the public. Visit our website at www.lbds.longbeach.gov. 

1 of 2 

Information  
Bulletin  

DS-003
The City of Long Beach 

City of Long Beach  Department of Development Services 

Cargo Container Used as Storage 
Building and Safety Bureau – Planning Bureau  

333 W. Ocean Blvd, 4th Floor, Long Beach, CA 90802 
Phone (562) 570-6651  Fax (562) 570-6753 

Effective: 02-13-2008 
Revised:  02-13-2008 

 
The purpose of this Information Bulletin is to clarify pertinent sections of the Long Beach Municipal 
Code (LBMC), Title 21 Zoning Ordinance that regulates the use and location of transport cargo 
containers. Transport cargo containers, commonly used on ocean going vessels, may be used as 
container or incidental storage when all of the Zoning and Building Code regulations are satisfied. 
This Information Bulletin establishes the minimum conditions and requirements when the containers, 
if permitted by the Zoning Ordinance, may be considered as a piece of equipment and not a building 
for the purpose of building code regulations. It is not the intent of this Information Bulletin to address 
cargo containers located within the Port of Long Beach. If the use is permitted, applicants wishing to 
use the containers as incidental storage will need to obtain building permits for the containers. 
 
ZONING CODE REGULATION: 
 
LBMC Chapter 21.33 Industrial Districts states that outdoor storage containers used for the duration 
of more than 72 hours requires an approved Conditional Use Permit (CUP) when located in any 
industrial zone. No other zone within the City addresses the use of transport containers; therefore, the 
use of transport containers for storage purposes is not permitted except in industrial zones. 
 
In residential zones, transport containers are regulated similar to accessory buildings or structures. 
Pursuant to LBMC Section 21.31.245, accessory buildings or structures are allowed in residential 
zones provided that they comply with the established design standards as required by LBMC Section 
21.31.255, which prohibits the use of metallic or metallic-looking siding. This section does, however, 
allow an application for a Site Plan Review application to be filed to vary from the design standards. 
 
BUILDING CODE REGULATION: 
 
Where transport containers are permitted, either through the CUP or Site Plan Review process as 
required by the Zoning Ordinance, the containers may be considered a piece of equipment for 
building code purposes when all of the following conditions are satisfied: 
 
A. Plans, Specifications, and Restrictions 

 
1. A plot plan drawn to scale showing the location of all existing buildings and parking 

spaces on the lot, and the size and location of the proposed container(s) with respect to 
those buildings, parking and property lines is required. 

2. The containers shall be constructed of steel or aluminum with a minimum 14-gauge 
thickness except for a wood floor within the metal shell. 

3. The Department may deny the request of an incidental storage with a cargo container, if 
in the Building Official’s opinion, such a request creates a violation of the Long Beach 
Municipal Code or causes an unsafe condition for the occupants of adjacent buildings or 
property. 

 



 

 
 
As a covered entity under Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act, the City of Long Beach does not discriminate on the basis of disability and, upon 
request, will provide reasonable accommodation to ensure equal access to its programs, services and activities. For efficient handling of information 
internally and on the internet, all documents and handouts, including interpretations and guidelines that have been previously issued, will be converted to 
this new format to allow flexibility and timely distribution of information to the public. Visit our website at www.lbds.longbeach.gov. 

2 of 2 

City of Long Beach  Cargo Container Used as Storage Information Bulletin DS-003

 
B. Location and Size 

 
1. The containers shall be located at least 5 feet from a property line and 10 feet from a 

building where exterior opening occurs. 
2. The containers shall not be located so as to block, obstruct, or reduce any required 

exits, open spaces, windows, vent shafts, or “required” parking spaces (including 
access driveways) of the existing buildings on the lot. 

3. Each container shall not exceed 10 feet in height, 10 feet in width, and 40 feet in length, 
and shall have no wall openings except for an access door opening. 

4. Containers shall not be “stacked” on top of each other or joined in any manner. 
 
C. Miscellaneous Requirements 

 
1. The use shall be limited to incidental storage to an approved non-residential use and 

shall not be used to store hazardous materials unless approved by the Fire Department. 
2. The use shall not allow human occupancy inside the container. 
3. Containers that have been factory-built with any electrical, plumbing, heating or air 

conditioning systems shall not be connected to a power source. 
4. Containers shall be maintained in good condition and free of graffiti at all times. 

 
D. Disabled Access Requirement 

 
1. The use of the containers shall not allow human occupancy and is, therefore, exempt 

from Title 24, Part 2, of the California Code of Regulations, the State’s Disabled Access 
and Adaptability requirements. 



Chapter 18.61
STORAGE CONTAINERS

Sections:

18.61.010    Purpose.

18.61.020    Definitions.

18.61.030    Storage on residential use properties.

18.61.040    Cargo containers – Permitted locations.

18.61.050    Permit required – Development standards.

18.61.060    Current violations – Time to comply.

18.61.070    Conflicts.

18.61.080    Violations – Penalties.

18.61.010 Purpose.

The purpose of this chapter is to regulate the use of storage containers on residentially zoned and residentially

used properties in the city, which regulations are adopted to protect the public health, safety, and welfare, and

promote positive aesthetics in the city. (Ord. 901 § 1, 2011)

18.61.020 Definitions.

A. An “accessory storage building” is:

1. A building originally constructed for use as an accessory building for the storage of materials and

equipment accessory to a primary use located on the property.

2. For purposes of this chapter, cargo containers, railroad cars, truck vans, converted mobile homes,

trailers, recreational vehicles, bus bodies, vehicles and similar prefabricated items and structures

originally built for purposes other than the storage of goods and materials are not accessory storage

buildings.

B. “Cargo containers” include standardized reusable vessels that were:

1. Originally designed for or used in the packing, shipping, movement or transportation of freight, articles,

goods or commodities; and/or

2. Originally designed for or capable of being mounted or moved by rail, truck or ship by means of being

mounted on a chassis or similar transport device. This definition includes the terms “transport containers”

and “portable site storage containers” having a similar appearance to and similar characteristics of cargo

containers. (Ord. 901 § 1, 2011)

18.61.030 Storage on residential use properties.

A. Only accessory storage buildings defined in DPMC 18.61.020(A) shall be permitted as accessory storage

containers on property in any residential zone of the city, or on any property within the city the primary use of

which is residential. Cargo containers, railroad cars, truck vans, converted mobile homes, travel trailers,

recreational vehicles, bus bodies, vehicles, and similar prefabricated items and structures originally built for

purposes other than the storage of goods and materials are not permitted to be used as accessory storage

buildings on property zoned residential or on property the primary use of which is residential.

B. Notwithstanding the provisions set forth in subsection A of this section, the temporary placement of

Chapter 18.61 STORAGE CONTAINERS http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/DeerPark/html/DeerPark18/DeerPa...

1 of 3 6/29/17, 8:52 AM



transport containers and/or portable site storage containers on residentially zoned properties, or on properties

the primary use of which are residential, for the limited purpose of loading and unloading household contents

shall be permitted for a period of time not exceeding 30 days in any one calendar year.

C. Notwithstanding the provisions set forth in subsection A of this section, licensed and bonded contractors

may use cargo containers for the temporary location of an office, equipment, and/or materials storage structure

during construction which is taking place on the property where the cargo container is located, if the use of the

cargo container is authorized pursuant to a city building permit. (Ord. 901 § 1, 2011)

18.61.040 Cargo containers – Permitted locations.

A. The placement of a cargo container as an accessory storage use is limited to the following zoning districts:

1. Central commercial (CC).

2. Commercial shopping center (CS).

3. Diversified (DC).

4. Light industrial (LI).

5. Business park (BP).

B. The placement of cargo containers is further limited to properties in the above-identified zones only if the

property upon which the cargo container is proposed to be located is not primarily used for residential

purposes. (Ord. 901 § 1, 2011)

18.61.050 Permit required – Development standards.

A. A building permit is required prior to placement of a cargo container larger than 200 square feet in area,

ensuring effective anchoring/foundation according to the then most current edition of the International Building

Code. The application shall show the proposed cargo container is accessory to the permitted use of the

property and meets the placement criteria for the zone.

B. Cargo containers shall meet the setback requirements of the underlying zone.

C. Cargo containers shall not be stacked above the height of a single container device, except for placement

within the light industrial zone and on the back yard one-half of the lot or parcel.

D. Cargo containers shall not be used for any advertising purpose and shall be kept clean of all alpha-numeric

signage and writing.

E. As a condition of placement, cargo containers may be required to be fenced or screened from abutting

properties and/or rights-of-way pursuant to the provisions of the underlying zoning regulations.

F. Cargo containers shall be in an approved designated area and on the same property as the principal use

and be included in the calculation of overall lot coverage.

G. Cargo containers shall not occupy required off-street parking, loading or landscaping areas.

H. Materials stored within cargo containers are subject to review and approval by the fire district. (Ord. 901 § 1,

2011)

18.61.060 Current violations – Time to comply.

Chapter 18.61 STORAGE CONTAINERS http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/DeerPark/html/DeerPark18/DeerPa...

2 of 3 6/29/17, 8:52 AM



All owners of property within the city shall have 120 days from the effective date of the ordinance codified in

this chapter to bring the properties, which currently contain accessory storage buildings that are in violation of

the terms of this chapter, into full compliance with the provisions of this chapter. (Ord. 901 § 1, 2011)

18.61.070 Conflicts.

In the event any conflict exists between the provisions of this chapter and other currently existing provisions of

the Deer Park Municipal Code or other ordinances of the city, the terms and provisions of this chapter shall

take precedence and to the extent of any such conflict, the terms and conditions of any existing provisions of

the Deer Park Municipal Code or other ordinances of the city shall be and hereby are amended insofar as

necessary to conform to the provisions of this chapter. (Ord. 901 § 1, 2011)

18.61.080 Violations – Penalties.

Violation of this chapter shall be enforced pursuant to the procedures and penalties set forth in Chapter 18.108

DPMC as the same exists now or may hereafter be amended. (Ord. 901 § 1, 2011)

The Deer Park Municipal Code is current through Ordinance
967, passed December 21, 2016.
Disclaimer: The City Clerk's Office has the official version of the

Deer Park Municipal Code. Users should contact the City Clerk's

Office for ordinances passed subsequent to the ordinance cited

above.

Chapter 18.61 STORAGE CONTAINERS http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/DeerPark/html/DeerPark18/DeerPa...

3 of 3 6/29/17, 8:52 AM











 Permit or Temp 

 Contact Poalo SRIA. 

 Semi trucks.   

 Seasonal structures ch 4‐7 

 Conditional com. Storage site or uncle bob site.   

 Graffiti 

 

 



Considerations for use of Cargo Containers 

1. What are cargo containers? 

• A proposed definition from multiple sources: An industrial, standardized, reusable, 
and portable metal container originally and specifically designed for use in the packing 
and intermodal shipping of goods or commodities by mounting for transport on trucks, 
rail cars, or ships.   

A cargo container may also be known as a shipping container, ISO (International 
Standard Organization) container, intermodal container, conex (container for export) 
box, or sea can. 

• A cargo container is also a “portable storage container” as currently defined: Any 
container, pod, trailer or other unit that is designed to temporarily store items and to be 
transported to and stored off site, typically by a private moving or storage company at a 
centralized warehouse.  The term “portable storage container” does not include solid 
waste dumpsters or tool sheds. 

2. What are acceptable uses of cargo containers? 

• Temporary or permanent use 

o if temporary, the use is largely addressed by existing portable storage container 
provisions limiting time of use, quantity, size, and placement 

o specific limits, prohibitions (e.g., residential use), or exemptions (e.g., construction 
materials/equipment) can be established for cargo containers used as temporary 
storage 

o if permanent, then a container must be considered either an item of outdoor storage 
or a structure, subject to existing or additional limits (e.g., screening), prohibitions 
(e.g., no stacking), or exemptions as applicable to the use 

o if used as a structure, any more restrictive treatment than for other structures must 
be justified, especially given there are no existing aesthetic constraints on the 
construction of accessory structures (e.g., storage sheds) 

• Residential or non-residential use 

o existing portable storage container provisions do not distinguish residential from 
non-residential use, but may need to with some variation in standards (e.g., quantity 
and seasonal placement) 

o cargo container use, temporary or permanent, could be limited or prohibited for 
residential uses based on the industrial character of the containers 

3. Integration with existing outdoor storage provisions is needed for permanent 
containers that will not be authorized as structures 

• Complete the scope of existing provisions 

• Remove outdated references to former code 

• Include placement and screening requirements for some districts 

• make comprehensive review of storage across all zoning districts 


	Agenda
	Approval of Minutes
	Att1_Draft September 5, 2017 Planning Board Rezoning Meeting Minutes
	Att2_Draft September 5, 2017 Planning Board Regular Meeting Minutes
	Att3_Monthly Action Follow-Up
	Att4_Six Month Outlook
	A Public Hearing Concerning the Review of an Ordinance Amending LDC Chapters 3 and 4 Regarding Clustering Dwelling Units
	Att1_Draft Ordinance
	Subdivision Lot Widths for Cul De Sacs
	Att1_Attachment
	Lakeshore.pdf
	LAKESHORE-1
	LAKESHORE-2
	LAKESHORE-3
	LAKESHORE-4
	LAKESHORE-5


	Storage Containers Discussion
	Att1_Attachment 1
	portablestoragebrochure.pdf
	TPSC_inside_med
	TPSC_outside_med


	Att2_Attachment 2

